
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Trustees 
Jennifer Cunningham, Vice Chair 
Richard Jay, Member 
Art Sperber, Alternate  
Shaun Carey, Alternate 
Staff Liaison 
Randy Carlton, Chief Finance & 
Administration Officer  

PRESIDENT/CEO 
  Daren Griffin, A.A.E. 

CHIEF LEGAL COUNSEL 
Ian Whitlock 

BOARD CLERK 
Lori Kolacek 

AGENDA 
Finance and Business Development Committee 

Tuesday, July 11, 2023  9:00 AM 
Reno-Tahoe International Airport, 2001 E. Plumb Lane, Reno, NV 

Administrative Offices, Second Floor  

Notice of Public Meeting  
Meetings are open to the public and notice is given pursuant to NRS 241.020. 

This meeting will be livestreamed and may be viewed by the public at the following link: 
Watch on Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88150587204; Webinar ID: 881 5058 7204 

Accommodations 
Members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested 
to notify the Clerk by email at lkolacek@renoairport.com or by phone at (775) 328-6402.   

Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to make public comment may do so in person at the Board meeting, or by emailing 
comments to lkolacek@renoairport.com. Comments received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before 
the meeting will be given to the Board for review and included with the minutes of this meeting. To 
make a public comment during the Zoom meeting, please make sure your computer or device has a 
working microphone.  Use the “Chat” feature to submit a request to speak. When the time comes to 
make public comments, you will be invited to speak. Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes 
per person. No action may be taken on a matter raised under general public comment. 

Posting 
This agenda has been posted at the following locations: 
1. RTAA Admin Offices, 2001 E. Plumb
2. www.renoairport.com
3. https://notice.nv.gov/

Supporting Materials 
Supporting documentation for this agenda is available at www.renoairport.com, and will be available 
for review at the Board meeting.  Please contact the Board Clerk at lkolacek@renoairport.com, or 
(775) 328-6402 for further information.

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-241.html
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88150587204
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com
https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meeting-information/agendas-minutes
https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meeting-information/agendas-minutes
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com


 
RTAA Finance & Business Development Committee – July 11, 2023   Pg. 2 

1.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
2.  ROLL CALL  
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
4.   MINUTES  
 
4.1  Approval of minutes of the June 6, 2023, Finance and Business Development Committee 

meeting.  
 
5.  INFORMATION, DISCUSSION AND/OR POSSIBLE ACTION    
 
5.1  New Cargo Development RFP update / option to lease and develop land with AFCO 

(information only) 
 
6.   ITEMS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY THE FULL BOARD  
 
6.1 Board Memo # 07/2023-51: Consideration of 12-month extension to the Scheidt & 

Bachmann USA Maintenance Services Agreement in the amount of $209,950.87 (for 
possible action) 

 
7.  PROJECT UPDATE PRESENTATIONS  
 
7.1 Administrative Award of Contracts – Revenues 
7.2  Administrative Award of Contracts – Expenditures  
7.3  Financial Reporting Package and Operating Statement  
 
8.  COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS, QUESTIONS, AND REQUESTS  
 
9.   PUBLIC COMMENT    
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT   
 
 



Minutes Finance and Business Development Committee 06/06/2023 
 
 

 
1 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Trustees 
Lisa Gianoli, Chair 
Jennifer Cunningham, Vice Chair 
Richard Jay, Member 
Jenifer Rose, Member 
Art Sperber, Alternate  
Shaun Carey, Alternate 
Staff Liaison 
Randy Carlton, Chief Finance & Administration Officer  
 

PRESIDENT/CEO 
   Daren Griffin, A.A.E. 

 
CHIEF LEGAL COUNSEL 

  Ian Whitlock 
 

CLERK OF THE BOARD 
Lori Kolacek 

--DRAFT-- 
MINUTES 

FINANCE & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Date:  Tuesday, June 6, 2023 
Time:  9:00 a.m.   
Location:   Reno-Tahoe International Airport, 2001 E. Plumb Lane, Reno  
               Admin Offices, Main Terminal Building, Second Floor 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
Roll was taken by the Clerk of the Board.  All members were present.   
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
None.  
 
4.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
4.1  May 16, 2023, Finance and Business Development Committee Meeting  
 
Motion: Move to approve the May 16, 2023, minutes as presented  
Moved: Jenifer Rose  Seconded: Richard Jay  
Aye: Trustees Cunningham, Jay, Rose, Gianoli 
Vote: Motion passed 
 
5.   INFORMATION, DISCUSSION AND/OR POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS 
 
None.  
 
 
 



Minutes Finance and Business Development Committee 06/06/2023 
 
 

 
2 

6.  ITEMS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY THE FULL BOARD  
 
6.1 Board Memo # 06/2023-37: Adoption of Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority fiscal year 2023-

24 Liability and Property Insurance Program and approval of premiums in the amount not 
to exceed $1,482,099 (for possible action)   

 
This item was presented by Alex Kovacs, Director of Finance.  After discussion and comments, 
the Committee took the following action:  
 
Motion: Move to recommend that this item be presented to the full Board on June 8, 2023, for 
consideration and approval of the proposed motion: “Approve the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Liability 
and Property Insurance Program and authorizes the President/CEO, or his designee, to bind the 
coverages and pay the FY 2023-24 premiums in the amount not to exceed $1,482,099” 
Moved: Richard Jay   Seconded: Jenifer Rose 
Aye: Trustees Cunningham, Jay, Rose, Gianoli 
Vote: Motion passed 
 
6.2 Board Memo # 06/2023-38: Authorization for the President/CEO to execute a three-year 

extension of the Professional Services Agreement with Government Portfolio Advisors, 
LLC (for possible action)   

 
This item was presented by Alex Kovacs, Director of Finance.  After discussion and comments, 
the Committee took the following action:  
 
Motion: Move to recommend that this item be presented to the full Board on June 8, 2023, for 
consideration and approval of the proposed motion: “Authorize the President/CEO to execute a 
three-year extension of the Professional Services Agreement for investment advisory services with 
Government Portfolio Advisors LLC”  
Moved: Richard Jay   Seconded: Lisa Gianoli 
Aye: Trustees Cunningham, Jay, Rose, Gianoli 
Vote: Motion passed 
 
6.3 Board Memo # 06/2023-39: Authorization for the President/CEO to execute a Third 

Amendment to Exclusive Master Development Agreement and Third Amendment to Phase 
I Ground Lease to include various performance milestones, adjust the annual option 
payment amount, add further and clarifying breach of a substantial and material obligation 
language, adjust Fair Market Value adjustment date and include a 5% cap on Fair Market 
Value adjustment with DP RTA Stead PH 1, LLC (for possible action)   

 
This item was presented by Aurora Ritter, Manager of Airport Economic Development.  After 
discussion and comments, the Committee took the following action:  
 
Motion: Move to recommend that this item be presented to the full Board on June 8, 2023, for 
consideration and approval of the proposed motion: “Authorize the President/CEO to execute a 
Third Amendment to the Exclusive Master Development Agreement (MDA) and Phase 1 Ground 
Lease (P1GL) with DP RTA Stead PH 1, LLC (Dermody) to include various performance 
milestones, adjust the annual option payment amount, add further and clarifying breach of a 



Minutes Finance and Business Development Committee 06/06/2023 
 
 

 
3 

substantial and material obligation language, adjust Fair Market Value adjustment date and 
include a 5% cap on Fair Market Value adjustment” 
Moved: Jenifer Rose  Seconded: Lisa Gianoli 
Aye: Trustees Cunningham, Jay, Rose, Gianoli 
Vote: Motion passed 
 
7.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (provided for reference only) 
 
7.1 Administrative Award of Contracts - Expenditures 
7.2  Administrative Award of Contracts - Revenues 
7.3  Financial Reporting Package  
 
There was no discussion on these items.   
 
8.  MEMBER COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS  
 
Randy Carlton, Chief Finance and Administration Officer, gave an update on the Conrac finance 
negotiations.   
 
9.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
None.  
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:44 a.m.   
 



 
 
 

BOARD MEMO NO.:  07/2023-51 
 

Date of Board Meeting: July 13, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of 12-month extension to the Scheidt & Bachmann USA 
Maintenance Services Agreement in the amount of $209,950.87 
 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Proposed Motion stated below.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The PARCS system 
 
This agenda item involves the parking and revenue control system (PARCS) at the Reno-Tahoe 
International Airport.  
 
The PARCS system is composed of hardware and software used to monitor and control public 
parking revenue in the parking garage and long-term surface parking as well as to provide access 
control for airport employee parking areas.  This system includes equipment and software that 
supports (1) access at the parking entry plaza, (2) license plate recognition for fraud protection, (3) 
credit card processing, (4) Pay-On-Foot cash/credit pay stations, (5) exit plaza cashier facilities, 
and (6) system computer servers and related equipment. The system is responsible for collecting 
approximately $17 million in annual revenue. The PARCS systems have been maintained by 
Scheidt & Bachmann (S&B) technicians since the installation of the original equipment in 2006.   
 
S&B installed a new PARCS system in June 2019 at a cost of approximately $750,000. The 
installation included a one year factory warranty and maintenance agreement.  Upon the expiration 
of that first warranty and service agreement, the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA) entered 
into a renewable twelve-month agreement.  The current twelve-month agreement will expire June 
30, 2023 which includes warranty coverage for new parts or any after-hours support. The proposed 
contract includes parts, service, and 24/7 support. As the system is now aging, and with the return 
of pre-pandemic passenger levels, the equipment requires additional servicing. The RTAA intends 
to enter into a traditional multi-year warranty and maintenance agreement, similar to the 
agreements made in past years, next fiscal year.  
 
Scheidt & Bachmann Proposed Maintenance Services 
 
This maintenance agreement will provide for the following services: 
 
• Dedicated On-site Factory Trained Technician 
• 24 Hour a Day / Seven days a week/ 365 Day Emergency Coverage 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
• Four (4) Hour Maximum Response Time 
• Additional Backup from the western region, if needed 
• Four (4) instances of scheduled Preventative Maintenance 
• Software Patches and Updates 
• Parts used during corrective or preventative and replacement of parts due to normal ware 

and tare 
 
The potential for loss of revenue, should the PARCS system break down, makes this agreement 
critical. On average, the RTAA receives approximately $46,000 in revenue per day through the 
PARCS system.  The system is proprietary to S&B, and requires a highly specialized support team 
to continually upgrade, monitor and maintain the system software and provide training needed to 
maintain the associated hardware.  Without this agreement, Scheidt & Bachmann technicians 
would be dispatched from Sacramento, with the risk of one-week delays.  Furthermore, the RTAA 
would be responsible for all time and materials for any maintenance request. 
 
From July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023, there have been approximately 150 service-related calls. 
 
DISCUSSION   
This action will provide on-site maintenance services, emergency after hours maintenance 
services, scheduled preventative maintenance and software updates and patching for the PARCS 
system from S&B until the end of the 2024 fiscal year. 
 
This action is in support of the Strategic Priority: Financial Stewardship, as adopted in the RTAA 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-2028 Comprehensive Strategic Plan. 
 
Nevada Revised Statute 332.115.1(a) and (c) provide exemptions to competitive bidding 
requirements for “items that may only be contracted from a sole source” as well as for “additions 
to and repairs and maintenance of equipment which may be more efficiently added to, repaired or 
maintained by a certain person” without having to comply with the requirements of a competitive 
bid. The proposed maintenance agreement qualifies for this exemption. Accordingly, staff is 
recommending this action be exempt from competitive bidding as permitted by Nevada Revised 
Statute 332.115.1(a) and (c). 
 
Due to the critical and proprietary nature of these systems, the use of vendor-provided support 
from S&B is considered a requirement, as an outside vendor providing such maintenance is not a 
viable option. Appropriate funding for the annual warranty and maintenance has been provided 
each year in the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Budget. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The PARCS Maintenance Agreement of $209,950.87 was included in the proposed FY 2023-24 
budget. 
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
Finance and Business Development Committee 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“Move to authorize the President/CEO to extend the existing Maintenance Services agreement for 
the Parking Access and Revenue Control System (PARCS) at the Reno-Tahoe International 
Airport (RNO) with Scheidt & Bachmann USA (S&B), in the total amount of $209,950.87 for a 
period of 12 months.” 



Page 1 
 

Administrative Report 
Date: July 11, 2023 
To:  All Board Members 
From: Daren Griffin, President/CEO 
Subject: Administrative Award of Contracts (Revenues) Pursuant To Resolution No. 557 

for the Month of June 2023 
  

BACKGROUND  
At the July 14, 2022 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority, the 
Board approved Resolution No. 557, recognizing the inherent authority of the President/CEO, 
or authorized representative to award revenue contracts except those that are, in combination, 
more than 5 years in Term, including options, and generate aggregate revenues of $250,000 or 
more.  
 
DISCUSSION  
Resolution No. 557 requires that the President/CEO provide the Board of Trustees with an 
administrative report setting forth a list of revenue contracts and associated options to extend 
approved administratively as a result of the resolution to be given to the Board on a monthly 
basis.  

June 2023 

 
 

Date Lessee Property Address 
Agreement 

Term 
Contract Value Portfolio 

6/1/23 Service Master by Dixon, 
LLC 

2900 Vassar St. Suite CC-11 12 Months $6,531.60 Outside 
Proper�es 

6/1/23 Service Master by Dixon, 
LLC 

2900 Vassar St. Suite CC-17 12 Months $6241.20 Outside 
Proper�es 

6/1/23 William Swope 2890 Vassar St, Suite AA-09 12 Months $7528.32 Outside 
Proper�es 

6/1/23 Christopher McClintock 2890 Vassar St. Suite AA-10 12 Months $6578.28 Outside 
Proper�es 

6/1/23 1 New Tenant Mini Warehouse Storage Month to 
Month 

$150.00 Outside 
Proper�es 

6/1/23 4 New Tenants Mini Warehouse Park to Travel Month to 
Month 

$410.00 Outside 
Proper�es 



Page 1 
 

Administrative Report 
Date: July 11, 2023  
To:  All Board Members 
From: Daren Griffin, President/CEO 
Subject: Administrative Award of Contracts (Expenditures) Pursuant to Resolution No. 

557 for the Month of June 2023 
 
  

BACKGROUND  
 
At the July 14, 2022, Board of Trustees’ Meeting of the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority, the 
Board approved Resolution No. 557 authorizing the President/CEO to administratively award 
contracts for: 

• budgeted professional services when the scope of work is $200,000 or less, and to 
approve amendments where the sum of the total net of amendments per agreement 
does not to exceed $50,000; and 

• budgeted goods, materials, supplies, equipment, technical services, and maintenance 
contracts when the estimated amount to perform the contract, including all change 
orders, is $250,000 or less; and 

• budgeted construction contracts when the estimated amount to perform the work is 
$500,000 or less, and approve change orders to construction contracts where the sum 
of the total net of change orders per contract does not exceed $250,000; and 

• budgeted Construction Management and Administration professional service 
agreements and amendments (“Work Order”) where a single Work Order does not 
exceed $250,000. 

 
All construction contracts exceeding $500,000 must be approved by the Board of Trustees, 
along with a request to establish an Owner’s Contingency. Additionally, if the Board of 
Trustees originally approved the construction contract, any construction change order 
exceeding the sum of the total of the contract and Owner’s Contingency must also be 
approved by the Board. 

 
DISCUSSION  
 
Resolution No. 557 requires that the President/CEO provide the Board of Trustees with a 
monthly administrative report listing of all agreements and purchase orders in excess of 
$25,000 and approved administratively as a result of this Resolution. Further, all change orders 
and amendments approved administratively as a result of this Resolution shall be included in a 
separate administrative report regardless of value. 
 



Page 2 
 

June 2023 – Agreements and POs in Excess of $25,000 

 
 

Date 
Name of 
Company 

Dollar 
Amount 

Description 
Funding 
Source 

Department / 
Division 

06/01/23 EYEP-Solutions 
Inc 

$48,214.29 A PO was issued for Extreme Networks Service 
Units. 

FY23 O&M Technology & 
Information 
Systems 

06/15/23 Maise Group LLC $184,800.96 A PO was issued for Microsoft 365 GCC for 12 
months. 

FY23 O&M Technology & 
Information 
Systems 

06/15/23 Economic 
Development 
Authority Of 

$25,000.00 A PO was issued for semi-annual dues. FY23 O&M President/CEO 

06/28/23 Maise Group LLC $43,194.78 A PO was issued for  Annual Server Support. FY23 O&M Technology & 
Information 
Systems 



Page 3 
 

June 2023 – Change Orders, Amendments, and Work Orders 

Date 
Name of 
Company 

Dollar 
Amount 

Description 
Funding 
Source 

Department / 
Division 

12/14/22 Tungsten 
Engineering 

($6,000.00) CO#2 for the RTS Erosion Control Project was 
final adjusted quantities (see attached). 

FY23 CIP Engineering & 
Construction 

05/16/23 PK Electrical, 
Inc. 

$25,000.00 Amendment #1 for the Electrical Masterplan 
Equipment Evaluation added additional scope to 
include the terminal and Maintenance Buildings 
at RTS, as well as the Fire House, SRE, Airfield 
Maintenance, and AVA Buildings at RNO. Revised 
PSA, including Amendment #1, equals 
$75,000.00. 

FY23 O&M Engineering & 
Construction 

05/18/23 Mead & Hunt, 
Inc. 

$0 A $0 amendment was applied to the base 
contract for the Concourse Planning Study to add 
scope for consulting services related to FAA AIP 
and BIL funding for the CUP. Although the base 
contract was a fixed fee, the consultant 
determined approximately $39,909 of remaining 
budget towards the new scope. 

FY19 CIP Planning & 
Environmental 

05/25/23 Granite 
Construction 
Co. 

($1,646,954.45) Deductive CO#6 applied base bid and bid alt #2 
final adjusted quantities (see attached). Final 
contract sum, including this CO, equals 
$41,724,221.38. 

Multiple 
Funding 
Sources / 
Fiscal Years: 
CIP and AIP 
Grants 

Engineering & 
Construction 

06/05/23 Reyman 
Brothers 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$48,808.64 Owner’s Contingency CO#3 for the Airfield 
Admin and Airport Ops Admin Offices Remodel 
Project for additional scope of work (see 
attached). Revised contract sum, including 
OCCO#3, equals $1,655,676.38. 

FY23 CIP Engineering & 
Construction 

06/06/23 Gardner 
Engineering 

$5,886.00 Owner’s Contingency CO#2 for the MZ-3 
Replacement Project provides for additional 
scope of work (see attached). Revised contract 
sum, including OCCO#2, equals $312,405.00. 

FY23 CIP Engineering & 
Construction 

06/22/23 Gardner 
Engineering 

$3,533.00 Owner’s Contingency CO#3 for the MZ-3 
Replacement Project provides for additional 
scope of work (see attached). Revised contract 
sum, including OCCO#3, equals $315,938.00. 

FY23 CIP Engineering & 
Construction 

06/27/23 McCarthy 
Building 
Companies, Inc. 

($10,000.00) CO#3, a deductive CO, for decreasing Schedule of 
Values in Owner’s Contingency (Ticketing Hall 
Expansion Project, GMP #2) (see attached). 
Revised GMP, including this CO, equals 
$25,881,971.68. 

FY23 CIP Engineering & 
Construction 

 

Key to abbreviations: 
AIP = Airport Improvement Project 
CIP = Capital Improvement Program 
CFC = Customer Facility Charge 

 
CO = Change Order 
NTE = Not to Exceed 
PFC = Passenger Facility Charge 

 
WO = Construction Mgmt Work Order 
PO = Purchase Order 
PSA = Professional Service Agreement 



REVISED 04/23/21 

CHANGE  Distribution to:     Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority   

ORDER   RTAA PURCHASING ☒  Reno-Tahoe International Airport   

   PM   ☒  Reno-Stead Airport 

CM               ☒  Box 12490 

   ENGINEER    ☒  Reno, NV  89510 

   CONTRACTOR  ☒    

   FAA   ☐    

 

Project: Reno-Stead Erosion Control Project  
  Change Order Number 02 
Solicitation #: ITB #22/23-11 Change Order Initiation Date: December 12, 2022 
  AIP No. N/A 
To: Tungsten Engineering Contractors, LLC Original Contract Date: October 3, 2022 
 5470 Kietzke Lane, Suite 337    

Reno, NV 89511  
  
You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract: 
 

 

Final Adjusted Quantities (see exhibit A) ………………………………………….  ($6,000.00) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All other terms, conditions, and requirements not modified herein remain unchanged. 

Not valid until signed by ALL parties.  Execution of this Change Order by both Owner and Contractor constitutes a binding agreement and serves as 

a full accord and satisfaction of any claim, demand, lien, stop notice or further request for compensation, past or present, known or unknown, and/or 

time extension arising out of or by virtue of the work described above in the Change Order.  Contractor’s signature indicates agreement herewith, 

including any adjustments in the Contract Sum or Contract Time. 

 

The Original Contract Sum was ................................................. $320,074.00 

Net Changes by Previously Authorized Change Orders ............... $59,230.00 

Net Changes by Previously Authorized Contingency Change Orders $0.00 

The Revised Contract Sum Prior to this Change Order was ......... $379,304.00 

The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order. ($6,000.00) 

The new Contract Sum, including this Change Order will be ....... $373,304.00  

 
The Contract Completion date prior to this Change Order was November 30, 2022. 
The Contract Time will not change due to this change order. 

 

Authorized By: 

Atkins North America  Atkins North America   Tungsten Engineering   Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  
Construction Manager  Construction Manager Contractor  Owner 

10509 Professional Cir. Ste 103 10509 Professional Cir. Ste 103  5470 Kietzke Lane, Suite 337   P.O. Box 12490  

Reno, NV  89521  Reno, NV  89521     Reno, NV 89511  Reno, NV  89510  

 

         

By: Brian Janes  By: Brian Janes   By: Heather Hellickson  By: Chris Cobb  

 

          

Date  Date  Date  Date  

    

 

12/12/22 12/12/22 12/14/2022

HURS2351
Typewriter
12/14/22



REVISED 04/23/21 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 
 



1 Airport Safety & Security LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% $1,500.00 1,500.00$                           1,500.00$                            -$                               

2 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% $10,000.00 10,000.00$                         10,000.00$                          -$                               

3 Remove and Replace Perimeter Fence (Contingent) LF 30 -                    (30.00) 0.00% $200.00 6,000.00$                           -$                                      (6,000.00)$                   

4 Earthwork CY 493 493.00             0.00 100.00% $60.00 29,580.00$                         29,580.00$                          -$                               

5 Install 12” D50 Riprap with Non-Woven Geotextile CY 74 74.00                0.00 100.00% $400.00 29,600.00$                         29,600.00$                          -$                               

6 Install 24” D50 Riprap with Non-Woven Geotextile CY 278 278 0.00 100.00% $250.00 69,500.00$                         69,500.00$                          -$                               

7 Install 3’x3’x3’ Gabion Baskets with 6” Rock and Non-Woven Geotextile EA 99 99 0.00 100.00% $900.00 89,100.00$                         89,100.00$                          -$                               

8 Install 12” Thick Gabion Mattress with Non-Woven Geotextile SF 1,305 1,305 0.00 100.00% $35.00 45,675.00$                         45,675.00$                          -$                               

9 Place Type 2, Class B Aggregate Base for Maintenance Road (Contingent) CY 64 64.00                0.00 100.00% $250.00 16,000.00$                         16,000.00$                          -$                               

10 Mobilization LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% $23,119.00 23,119.00$                         23,119.00$                          -$                               

CHANGE ORDERS -$                                     -$                                      -$                               

1 Install D50 Rip Rap  and Additional excavation for channel realignment LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 59,230.00$          59,230.00$                         59,230.00$                          -$                               

Total 379,304.00$                      373,304.00$                       (6,000.00)$                   

$ Extended

(Measured)
$ Over/Under

RTS  EROSION CONTROL PROJECT - FINAL ADJUSTED QUANTITIES

Cost

Unit Estimated Measured Over/Under
Item # Description

Quantity

% Complete Bid PriceUnit Cost



REVISED 04/23/21

CHANGE Distribution to: Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority
ORDER RTAA PURCHASING Reno-Tahoe International Airport

PM ☒ Reno-Stead Airport
CM ☒ P.O. Box 12490
ENGINEER Reno, NV  89510
CONTRACTOR ☒
FAA ☒

Project: Runway 16R-34L Reconstruction Project
RTAA Project #: R19005A Change Order Number 06

Initiation Date: May 11, 2023
AIP No. 3-32-0017-106

To: Granite Construction Company Original Contract Date: April 8, 2020
P.O. Box 2087
Sparks, NV  89431

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract:

PCO No. 08 – MagVar Striping & Signage Changes ($15.68)
PCO No. 23 – East Airfield Lighting Vault Fiber Connectivity ($1.32)
PCO No. 26 – Spare Runway Light Fixtures ($2.94)
PCO No. 28 – Remove and Replace Electrical Vault Lids ($0.18)
PCO No. 29 – Additional Spare Runway Light Fixtures ($0.07)
PCO No. 30 – Procure Additional Paint and Beads ($1.75)
Base Bid Final Adjusted Quantities 17,073.06
Bid Alternate No. 02 Final Adjusted Quantities (1,664,005.57)

Total ($1,646,954.45)

All other terms, conditions, and requirements not modified herein remain unchanged.

Not valid until signed by ALL parties.  Execution of this Change Order by both Owner and Contractor constitutes a binding agreement and serves as a full accord and satisfaction of any 
claim, demand, lien, stop notice or further request for compensation, past or present, known or unknown, and/or time extension arising out of or by virtue of the work described above in the 
Change Order.  Contractor’s signature indicates agreement herewith, including any adjustments in the Contract Sum or Contract Time.

The Original Contract Sum was.............................................................. $44,518,615.00
Net Changes by Previously Authorized Change Orders ......................... ($1,147,439.17)
Net Changes by Previously Authorized Contingency Change Orders $0.00
The Revised Contract Sum Prior to this Change Order was ................... $43,371,175.83
The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order. ($1,646,954.45)
The new Contract Sum, including this Change Order will be ................ $41,724,221.38

The Contract Completion date prior to this Change Order was October 8, 2021.
The Contract time was suspended from October 17, 2021, through October 9, 2022
The Contract Time will be increased by fifty-three (53) calendar days until MagVar work commenced on October 10, 2022.
The Contract completion date, as of the date of this Change Order, therefore is November 23, 2022.

Authorized By:

Atkins North America Wood Rodgers, Inc. Granite Construction Co. Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority
Construction Manager Engineer Contractor Owner
10509 Professional Cir. Ste 103 1361 Corporate Blvd P.O. Box 2087 P.O. Box 12490
Reno, NV  89521 Reno, NV  89502 Sparks, NV 89431 Reno, NV  89510

By: Kara Bymers By: Brian Martinezmoles By: Matt Cates By: 

Date Date Date Date

Enclosure: Exhibit A – PCO Coversheets
Exhibit B – Base Bid Final Adjusted Quantities
Exhibit C – Bid Alternate No. 02 Final Adjusted Quantities

05/11/2023

Sparks, NV 89431 R

By: Matt Cates B

5/15/23

Digitally signed by Brian 
Martinezmoles

Date: 2023.05.22 16:05:23-07'00'

5/25/2023



 

 

 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 
 







Atkins North America, Inc.
10509 Professional Circle, Suite 102
Reno, NV 89521-8991
Telephone: +1.775.828.1622
Fax: +1.775.851.1687
www.atkinsglobal.com/northamerica

December 17, 2021

Mr. Matt Cates                            
Area Manager                        
Granite Construction Company 
1900 Glendale Avenue        
Sparks, NV  89431 

Subject:        Runway 16R-34L Reconstruction Project              
Reno-Tahoe International Airport                      
Potential Change Order No. 23                                
East Airfield Lighting Vault Fiber Connectivity and Contingent Bid Item Deduct
Letter Serial No. R19005A-OGCC-271

Dear Mr. Cates:

This Potential Change Order (PCO) sets forth the terms and conditions to provide labor, equipment, 
material and full compensation to upgrade the existing fiber optic communication line between the West 
Airfield Lighting Vault to the East Airfield Lighting Vault. The cost of this work is offset with deleting 
unused quantity of contingent bid items.

The following adjustments shall be made to Base Bid Schedule of Values:

PCO 23-01, Single Mode Fiber Optic and Associated Hardware Installation
One lump Sum                                                                                                 $50,698.68

Bid Item P-152-3, Excavation and Embankment of Unsuitable Material (Contingent) 
Delete the remaining quantity 
(600 CY @ $42.00/CY) ($25,200.00)

Bid Item P-152-5, Disposal of Contaminated Material (Contingent) 
Delete the remaining quantity 
(118 CY @ $125.00/CY) ($14,750.00)

Bid Item P-620-6, Miscellaneous Permanent Reflective Airfield Pavement Markings (Contingent Item)
Decrease the estimated quantity of 50,000 SF to 39,250 SF 
(10,750 SF @ $1.00/SF) ($10,750.00)

Total ($1.32)

The total deductive amount approved for this change is ($1.32). Granite Construction Company has not 
asked for and will not receive any days added to the contract duration for this change.

If the above terms and conditions are acceptable, please indicate by signing below and returning the 
original letter to this office. Upon receiving all approvals, the necessary change order documentation will 
be processed. A fully executed copy of this PCO will be forwarded to Granite Construction Company. If 
you have any questions, please call me at (775) 828-1622.



Sincerely,                                                                             Concur:

Joe Mamola                                                                          Tony Curatolo, Project Manager
Sr. Construction Manager                                                     Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority

Matt Cates, Area Manager                                                   Chris Cobb, Manager of Engineering & 
Granite Construction Company                                            Construction Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority

Enclosure: Granite Construction’s Time and Material Sheets.

File: R19005A.70.03; R19005A.40.08.23

Sr. Construction Managgggggggggggggger      

M tt C t A M

T C t l P j t M
p y

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCChhhhhrhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh is Cobb, MMMMMMMMMManannnnannnnannnnnnnnnnnanannnnnnnnnannnnnnnnannnnnnnannnnnnnnnnnnnannnnnannnnnnnnnnnnnnager of Engi



Atkins North America, Inc.
10509 Professional Circle, Suite 102
Reno, NV 89521-8991
Telephone: +1.775.828.1622
Fax: +1.775.851.1687
www.atkinsglobal.com/northamerica

December 17, 2021

Mr. Matt Cates                            
Area Manager                        
Granite Construction Company 
1900 Glendale Avenue        
Sparks, NV  89431 

Subject:        Runway 16R-34L Reconstruction Project              
Reno-Tahoe International Airport                      
Potential Change Order No. 26                                
Spare Runway Light Fixtures
Letter Serial No. R19005A-OGCC-272

Dear Mr. Cates:

This Potential Change Order (PCO) sets forth the terms and conditions to purchase and deliver to the 
owner, the following spare runway light fixtures:

3 EA Runway Centerline Lights Red/White
3 EA Runway Centerline Lights White/White
3 EA Elevated Runway Edge Lights White/White
3 EA Elevated Runway Edge Lights White/Yellow
1 EA Runway End light – Left - Red/Red
1 EA Runway End Light – Right - Red/Red
1 EA Displaced Threshold – Left - Green/Blank
1 EA Displaced Threshold – Right - Green/Blank

The cost of this material is offset with deleting unused quantity of contingent item P-620-6.

The following adjustments shall be made to Base Bid Schedule of Values:

PCO 26-01, Spare Runway Lights
One lump Sum                                                                                                 $15,022.06

Bid Item P-620-6, Miscellaneous Permanent Reflective Airfield Pavement Markings (Contingent Item)
Decrease the estimated quantity of 39,250 SF to 24,225 SF 
(15,025 SF @ $1.00/SF) ($15,025.00)

The total deductive amount approved for this change is ($2.94). Granite Construction Company has not 
asked for and will not receive any days added to the contract duration for this change.

If the above terms and conditions are acceptable, please indicate by signing below and returning the 
original letter to this office. Upon receiving all approvals, the necessary change order documentation will 
be processed. A fully executed copy of this PCO will be forwarded to Granite Construction Company. If 
you have any questions, please call me at (775) 828-1622.



Sincerely,                                                                             Concur:

Joe Mamola                                                                          Tony Curatolo, Project ManagerSr. Construction Manager                                                     Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority

Matt Cates, Area Manager                                                   Chris Cobb, Manager of Engineering & 
Granite Construction Company                                            Construction Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority
                      
                                                                          Enclosure: Granite Construction’s Time and Material Sheets.

File: R19005A.70.03; R19005A.40.08.26









 

 

 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 
 
 



C-105-1 Mobilization LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 755,000.00$       755,000.00$                      755,000.00$                       -$                              
C-106-1 Airport Safety and Security LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 2,321,078.50$    2,321,078.50$                   2,321,078.50$                    -$                              
P-101-1 Remove Bituminous Pavement Section (2-6 inch thick) SY 31,750 31,820.80        70.80 100.22% 5.50$                   174,625.00$                      175,014.40$                       389.40$                        
P-101-2 Remove Pavement Section (15-20 PCCP & 6 to 8 inch ATPB/CTB) (Modified by PCO 16) SY 2,139 1,936.00          (203.00) 90.51% 76.00$                 162,564.00$                      147,136.00$                       (15,428.00)$                 
P-152-1 Unclassified Excavation and Export CY 3,500 3,500.00          0.00 100.00% 20.00$                 70,000.00$                        70,000.00$                         -$                              
P-152-2 Unclassified Excavation and Embankment CY 2,000 2,000.00          0.00 100.00% 11.00$                 22,000.00$                        22,000.00$                         -$                              
P-152-3 Excavation and Embankment of Unsuitable Material (Contingent)  (Modified By PCO 14, 23) CY 0 -                   0.00 100.00% 42.00$                 -$                                    -$                                     -$                              
P-152-4 Subgrade/Subbase Preparation  (Modified by PCO 16) SY 11,114 12,501.00        1387.00 112.48% 2.50$                   27,785.00$                        31,252.50$                         3,467.50$                    
P-152-5 Disposal of Contaminated Material (Contingent) (Modified By PCO 14, 19, 23) CY 0 -                   0.00 100.00% 125.00$               -$                                    -$                                     -$                              

P-201S-1 Asphalt Treated Permeable Base (P-201) (6 inch thick) (Modified by PCO 16) SY 1,147 1,095.50          (51.50) 95.51% 20.00$                 22,940.00$                        21,910.00$                         (1,030.00)$                   
P-209-1 Crushed Aggregate Base Course (P-209) (6 inch thick) SY 9,000 10,565.00        1565.00 117.39% 11.00$                 99,000.00$                        116,215.00$                       17,215.00$                  
P-403-1 Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Pavement (P-403) (6 inch thick) SY 9,000 10,565.00        1565.00 117.39% 32.00$                 288,000.00$                      338,080.00$                       50,080.00$                  
P-403-2 Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Base (P-403) (6 inch thick)  (Modified by PCO 16) SY 967 840.50             (126.50) 86.92% 32.00$                 30,944.00$                        26,896.00$                         (4,048.00)$                   
P-501-1 Portland Cement Concrete Pavement (P-501) (17 inch thick)  (Modified by PCO 16) SY 2,114 1,862.21          (251.79) 88.09% 164.00$               346,696.00$                      305,402.44$                       (41,293.56)$                 
P-620-1 Airfield Striping Removals SF 375,000 457,859.76     82859.76 122.10% 1.15$                   431,250.00$                      526,538.72$                       95,288.72$                  
P-620-2 Airfield Striping Removals (Contingent Item)  (Modified By PCO 14) SF 125,000 6,744.00          (118256.00) 5.40% 0.60$                   75,000.00$                        4,046.40$                            (70,953.60)$                 
P-620-3 Thermoplastic Runway Holding Position Surface Painted Sign Removal (Modified By PCO 30) SF 20,694 19,725.25        (968.75) 95.32% 11.35$                 234,876.90$                      223,881.60$                       (10,995.30)$                 
P-620-4 Airfield Striping Cleaning SF 125,000 161,756.00     36756.00 129.40% 0.45$                   56,250.00$                        72,790.20$                         16,540.20$                  
P-620-5 Permanent Reflective Airfield Pavement Markings (Modified By PCO 29) SF 405,519 358,951.00     (46568.00) 88.52% 1.00$                   405,519.00$                      358,951.00$                       (46,568.00)$                 
P-620-6 Miscellaneous Permanent Reflective Airfield Pavement Markings (Contingent Item) (Modified By PCO 14, 26) SF 24,225 11,119.25        (13105.75) 45.90% 1.00$                   24,225.00$                        11,119.25$                         (13,105.75)$                 
P-620-7 Permanent Non-Reflective Airfield Pavement Marking SF 155,000 156,223.75     1223.75 100.79% 0.60$                   93,000.00$                        93,734.25$                         734.25$                        
P-620-8 Miscellaneous Permanent Non-Reflective Airfield Pavement Marking (Contingent Item)  (Modified By PCO 14) SF 20,000 7,385.00          (12615.00) 36.93% 0.60$                   12,000.00$                        4,431.00$                            (7,569.00)$                   
P-620-9 Thermoplastic Runway Holding Position Surface Painted Sign EA 38 41.00               3.00 107.89% 12,000.00$          456,000.00$                      492,000.00$                       36,000.00$                  

P-620-10 Thermoplastic Taxiway Directional Marking EA 3 3.00                 0.00 100.00% 12,000.00$          36,000.00$                        36,000.00$                         -$                              
P-621-5.1 Grooving (Modified by PCO 16) SY 2,114 1,935.00          (179.00) 91.53% 34.00$                 71,876.00$                        65,790.00$                         (6,086.00)$                   
T-908-1 Remove, Stockpile, and Reset Existing Surface Rock (3-6 inch thick) SY 30,500 13,848.70        (16651.30) 45.41% 1.00$                   30,500.00$                        13,848.70$                         (16,651.30)$                 
T-908-2 Import and Place Surface Rock (3 inch thick) SY 21,500 40,465.00        18965.00 188.21% 2.50$                   53,750.00$                        101,162.50$                       47,412.50$                  
L-108-1 1-1/C No. 8 AWG, 5 kV, L-824C  Cable (Modified By PCO 10a) LF 1,216 1,216.00          0.00 100.00% 2.20$                   2,675.20$                           2,675.20$                            -$                              
L-108-2 1-1/C No. 6 AWG, 600V Ground Wire (Modified By PCO 10a) LF 616 616.00             0.00 100.00% 1.40$                   862.40$                              862.40$                               -$                              
L-110-1 2W-3" FAA Ductbank LF 785 576.00             (209.00) 73.38% 105.00$               82,425.00$                        60,480.00$                         (21,945.00)$                 
L-110-2 2W-4" FAA Ductbank LF 1,540 1,432.00          (108.00) 92.99% 107.00$               164,780.00$                      153,224.00$                       (11,556.00)$                 
L-110-3 4W-3" FAA Ductbank LF 2,150 2,321.00          171.00 107.95% 124.00$               266,600.00$                      287,804.00$                       21,204.00$                  
L-110-4 4W-4" FAA Ductbank LF 260 177.00             (83.00) 68.08% 141.00$               36,660.00$                        24,957.00$                         (11,703.00)$                 
L-110-5 1W-2" AFL Concrete Encased Electrical Conduit in New PCC LF 210 -                   (210.00) 0.00% 25.00$                 5,250.00$                           -$                                     (5,250.00)$                   

L-110-11 6W-2" FAA Ductbank LF 310 358.00             48.00 115.48% 163.00$               50,530.00$                        58,354.00$                         7,824.00$                    
L-115-1 4' by 4' by 4' Electrical Handhole - Aircraft Rated (Modified By PCO 01) EA 25 25.00               0.00 100.00% 24,000.00$          600,000.00$                      600,000.00$                       -$                              
L-125-1 3-Mod Lighted Sign (L) on Existing Foundation EA 5 5.00                 0.00 100.00% 5,700.00$            28,500.00$                        28,500.00$                         -$                              
L-125-2 Panel (Any Length) on Existing Sign (for Mag Var) EA 57 64.00               7.00 112.28% 1,700.00$            96,900.00$                        108,800.00$                       11,900.00$                  
L-125-3 L-868B Base Can w/ Extension EA 4 -                   (4.00) 0.00% 1,700.00$            6,800.00$                           -$                                     (6,800.00)$                   
L-128-1 Demolition and Removal of Electrical Work LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 194,000.00$       194,000.00$                      194,000.00$                       -$                              
L-128-2 Temporary Airfield Electrical Work LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 61,000.00$          61,000.00$                        61,000.00$                         -$                              
L-128-3 Miscellaneous Airfield Electrical Work LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 111,000.00$       111,000.00$                      111,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-1 RW 16R MALSR Threshold Bar LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 160,000.00$       160,000.00$                      160,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-2 RW 16R MALSR Station 2, 4, 6 & 8 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 192,000.00$       192,000.00$                      192,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-3 RW 16R MALSR Station 10 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 143,000.00$       143,000.00$                      143,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-4 RW 16R MALSR Station 12 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 46,000.00$          46,000.00$                        46,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-5 RW 16R MALSR Station 14 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 17,000.00$          17,000.00$                        17,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-6 RW 16R MALSR Station 16, 18 & 20 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 52,000.00$          52,000.00$                        52,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-7 RW 16R MALSR Station 22 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 17,000.00$          17,000.00$                        17,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-8 RW 16R MALSR Station 24 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 17,000.00$          17,000.00$                        17,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-9 RW 34L MALSR Threshold Bar LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 113,000.00$       113,000.00$                      113,000.00$                       -$                              

% Complete Unit Cost Bid Price $ Extended
(Measured) $ Over/Under

Runway 16R-34L Project Phase 2
Base Bid Final Adjusted Quantities

Item # Description
Quantity Cost

Unit Estimated Measured Over/Under



% Complete Unit Cost Bid Price $ Extended
(Measured)

$ Over/Under

Base Bid Final Adjusted Quantities

Item # Description
Quantity Cost

Unit Estimated Measured Over/Under

L-146-10 RW 34L MALSR Station 2, 4, 6, 8, 10 & 12 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 362,000.00$       362,000.00$                      362,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-11 RW 34L MALSR Station 14 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 37,000.00$          37,000.00$                        37,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-12 RW 34L MALSR Station 16, 18 & 20 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 52,000.00$          52,000.00$                        52,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-13 RW 34L MALSR Station 22 & 24 LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 36,000.00$          36,000.00$                        36,000.00$                         -$                              
L-146-14 MALSR 16R Wiring, DU Cabinet, & Associated Connections LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 172,000.00$       172,000.00$                      172,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-15 MALSR 34L Wiring, DU Cabinet & Associated Connections LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 166,000.00$       166,000.00$                      166,000.00$                       -$                              
L-146-16 MALSR Miscellaneous Work (Both Ends) LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 57,000.00$          57,000.00$                        57,000.00$                         -$                              
13410A ALCS Modifications LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 114,238.00$       114,238.00$                      114,238.00$                       -$                              

PCO 01-01 Remove Existing Handholes and Add New Steel Tags LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 12,756.00$          12,756.00$                        12,756.00$                         -$                              
PCO 02-01 Surface Thermoplastic Runway Holding Position Signs LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 28,654.75$          28,654.75$                        28,654.75$                         -$                              
PCO 07-01 Abandon FAA Vaults LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 3,389.75$            3,389.75$                           3,389.75$                            -$                              
PCO 13-01 Relocate Stored Thermoplastic LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 1,275.16$            1,275.16$                           1,275.16$                            -$                              
PCO 16-01 Remove and Replace Existing Panels LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 153,446.00$       153,446.00$                      153,446.00$                       -$                              
PCO 19-01 Additional MALSR Lights LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 11,752.73$          11,752.73$                        11,752.73$                         -$                              
PCO 24-02 Thermoplastic at Taxiway Juliet LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 35,148.04$          35,148.04$                        35,148.04$                         -$                              
PCO 29-01 Additional Spare Runway Light Fixtures LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 4,480.93$            4,480.93$                           4,480.93$                            -$                              
PCO 30-01 Furnish White Striping Paint & Glass Beads LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 48,871.35$          48,871.35$                        48,871.35$                         -$                              
PCO 26-01 Spare Runway Light Fixtures LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 15,022.06$          15,022.06$                        15,022.06$                         -$                              
PCO 23-01 East Airfield Lighting Vault Fiber Connectivity LS 1 1.00                 0.00 100.00% 50,698.68$          50,698.68$                        50,698.68$                         -$                              

Total 10,127,595.45$                 10,144,668.51$                  17,073.06$                  



 

 

 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
 
 
 



C-105-1 Mobilization LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 1,385,000.00$    1,385,000.00$                    1,385,000.00$                     -$                               
C-105-2 Demobilization & Remobilization for Winter Shutdown (Contingent)  (Modified By PCO 14) LS 0 -                    0.00 100.00% 5,000.00$            -$                                      -$                                       -$                               
C-106-1 Airport Safety & Security LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 2,168,946.00$    2,168,946.00$                    2,168,946.00$                     -$                               
P-101-2 Remove Pavement Section (15" - 20" PCCP & 6"-8" ATPB/CTB) SY 76,750 77,507.80        757.80 100.99% 25.00$                  1,918,750.00$                    1,937,695.00$                     18,945.00$                   
P-152-1 Unclassified Excavation & Export CY 500 -                    (500.00) 0.00% 20.00$                  10,000.00$                         -$                                       (10,000.00)$                 
P-152-2 Unclassified Excavation & Embankment CY 500 -                    (500.00) 0.00% 11.00$                  5,500.00$                            -$                                       (5,500.00)$                    
P-152-3 Excavation & Embankment of Unsuitable Material (Contingent)  (Modified By PCO 8, 14, 18, 25) CY 129 129.00              0.00 100.00% 42.00$                  5,418.00$                            5,418.00$                             -$                               
P-152-4 Subgrade/Subbase Preparation SY 82,450 77,507.80        (4942.20) 94.01% 2.00$                    164,900.00$                       155,015.60$                        (9,884.40)$                    

P-201S01 Asphalt Treated Permeable Base (P-201) (6 inch thick) SY 71,050 71,505.00        455.00 100.64% 20.00$                  1,421,000.00$                    1,430,100.00$                     9,100.00$                     
P-209-2 Crushed Aggregate Base Leveling Course (P-209) (Contingent)   (Modified By PCO 8) Ton 3,726 2,772.43          (953.57) 74.41% 20.50$                  76,383.00$                         56,834.83$                          (19,548.17)$                 
P-403-2 Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Base (P-403) (6 inch thick) SY 5,700 5,762.00          62.00 101.09% 32.00$                  182,400.00$                       184,384.00$                        1,984.00$                     
P-501-1 Portland Cement Concrete Pavement (P-501) (17 inch thick) SY 76,750 63,482.98        (13267.02) 82.71% 120.00$                9,210,000.00$                    7,617,957.60$                     (1,592,042.40)$            

P-621-5.1 Grooving SY 73,500 74,924.00        1424.00 0.00% 4.00$                    294,000.00$                       299,696.00$                        5,696.00$                     
T-908-4 Net Change to process, crush, & use onsite PCCP (Base Bid) (Contingent) SY 0 -                    0.00 100.00% -$                      -$                                      -$                                       -$                               
T-908-5 Net Change to process, crush, & use onsite PCCP (Bid Alt #1) (Contingent) SY 0 -                    0.00 100.00% -$                      -$                                      -$                                       -$                               
T-908-6 Net Change to process, crush, & use onsite PCCP (Bid Alt #7) (Contingent) SY 0 -                    0.00 100.00% -$                      -$                                      -$                                       -$                               
L-108-1 1-1/C No. 8 AWG, 5kV, L-824C Cable (In Project Area)  (Modified By PCO 8, 10a) LF 43,198 43,198.00        0.00 100.00% 1.60$                    69,116.80$                         69,116.80$                          -$                               
L-108-2 1-1/C No. 6 AWG, 600V, Ground Wire (Modified By PCO 10a, 28) LF 41,378 21,861.00        (19517.00) 52.83% 0.80$                    33,102.40$                         17,488.80$                          (15,613.60)$                 
L-110-5 1W-2" AFL Concrete Encased Electrical Conduit in New PCC LF 14,090 11,804.00        (2286.00) 83.78% 17.00$                  239,530.00$                       200,668.00$                        (38,862.00)$                 
L-125-3 L-868B Base Can w/ Extension EA 271 271.00              0.00 100.00% 2,100.00$            569,100.00$                       569,100.00$                        -$                               
L-125-17 L-850A(L) Runway Centerline Light EA 219 219.00              0.00 100.00% 1,700.00$            372,300.00$                       372,300.00$                        -$                               
L-125-18 L-852A(L) Taxiway Centerline Bidirectional Light (Modified By PCO 04) EA 49 49.00                0.00 100.00% 1,700.00$            83,300.00$                         83,300.00$                          -$                               
L-125-19 L-852A(L) Taxiway Centerline Bidirectional Light EA 3 3.00                  0.00 100.00% 1,800.00$            5,400.00$                            5,400.00$                             -$                               
L-128-1 Demolition & Removal of Electrical Work LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 68,000.00$          68,000.00$                         68,000.00$                          -$                               
L-128-2 Temporary Airfield Electrical Work LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 43,000.00$          43,000.00$                         43,000.00$                          -$                               
L-128-3 Miscellaneous Airfield Electrical Work LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 102,000.00$        102,000.00$                       102,000.00$                        -$                               
L-128-4 Temporary Airfield Electrical Work for Winter Shutdown (Contingent)  (Modified By PCO 14) LS 0 -                    0.00 100.00% 20,000.00$          -$                                      -$                                       -$                               
L-132-1 Install RPU Enclosure and Electronics Installation LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 35,000.00$          35,000.00$                         35,000.00$                          -$                               
L-132-2 Install Surface Scan Sensor Cable - Type V LF 28,000 25,700.00        (2300.00) 91.79% 3.60$                    100,800.00$                       92,520.00$                          (8,280.00)$                    
L-132-3 Install Pavement Surface Sensor System LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 60,000.00$          60,000.00$                         60,000.00$                          -$                               
L-132-4 Furnishing Surface Scan Sensor(s), Cable & RPU Equipment (By Manufacture Costs) LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 452,000.00$        452,000.00$                       452,000.00$                        -$                               
L-125-22 L-852B(L) Taxiway Centerline Bidirectional Light (Modified By PCO 04) EA 7 7.00                  0.00 100.00% 1,700.00$            11,900.00$                         11,900.00$                          -$                               

PCO 02-02 Surface Thermoplastic Runway Centerline Markings LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 77,414.18$          77,414.18$                         77,414.18$                          -$                               
PCO 18-01 Additional PCCP Sawcutting at Taxiway Juliet LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 20,978.16$          20,978.16$                         20,978.16$                          -$                               
PCO 18-02 Replace Existing Electrical Vault Lid at Taxiway Papa LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 614.27$                614.27$                               614.27$                                -$                               
PCO 25-01 Remote and Replace PCCP LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 16,874.18$          16,874.18$                         16,874.18$                          -$                               
PCO 08-01 MAGVAR LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 256,806.12$        256,806.12$                       256,806.12$                        -$                               
PCO 28-01 Vault Lids LS 1 1.00                  0.00 100.00% 50,254.22$          50,254.22$                         50,254.22$                          -$                               

Total 19,509,787.33$                 17,845,781.76$                  (1,664,005.57)$           

$ Extended
(Measured) $ Over/Under

Runway 16R-34L Project Phase 2
Bid Alternate No. 02 Final Adjusted Quantities

Cost

Unit Estimated Measured Over/Under
Item # Description

Quantity

% Complete Bid PriceUnit Cost



6/5/2023











































































































































06/06/23









06/22/23

6/22/2023

Gary Probert, Chief of Planning & Infrastructure, for Jackie Borman

















 

Administrative Report  
Date:  July 11, 2023 
To:  All Board Members 
From:  Daren Griffin, President/CEO 
Subject: Financial Reporting Package – May 2023 

  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Attached is the Financial Reporting Package for the eleventh-month period ending May 31,2023, of the 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23. The package includes a high-level summary of total revenue and expenses, 
followed by a more detailed discussion of key metrics. A summary of financial operating results in 
comparison to the budget forecast is as follows: 
 

Y E A R    T O    D A T E   as  of May 31, 2023  (In Thousands)
91.7% Of Fiscal Year

CURRENT PRIOR Y-T-D
YEAR YEAR $ % BUDGET $ %

Operating Revenue
  Airline 17,849$      16,932$      917$           5.4% 19,223$      (1,374)$       -7.1%
  Non-Airline 42,648 38,235 4,413 11.5% 43,167 (519) -1.2%
Total Operating Revenue 60,497        55,167        5,330          9.7% 62,390        (1,893)         -3.0%

Operating Expenses (50,192) (43,142) (7,050) 16.3% (53,554) 3,362 -6.3%

Net Operating Income 10,305 12,024 (1,720) -14.3% 8,836 1,468 -16.6%

Non-Operating Income (Expense)* 31,525 26,546 4,979 18.8% 30,996 530 1.7%

Net Income Before Depreciation 41,830        38,571        3,259          8.5% 39,832        1,998          5.0%

VARIANCE
Actual Results

VARIANCE

 
 
The month of May saw continued volatility in the US equity markets, with major indices ending 
effectively flat following a month of ups and downs. The May Consumer Price Index (CPI) report showed 
prices having increased 0.1% from April, and 4.0% over the previous 12 months. Additionally, personal 
consumption expenditures only rose 0.1% in May, suggesting the Federal Reserve’s increased rates and 
tightening monetary policy may be taking effect. The national unemployment rate rose to 3.7%, matching 
its highest rate since March 2022, and the economy added 339,000 jobs. In Washoe County, the 
unemployment rate rose from 4.0% to 4.1%.  
 
RNO continues to display increased passenger traffic year over year with 183,100 enplanements in May 
2023, an increase of 4.9% from May 2022. While demand for travel in the Reno-Tahoe region remains 
strong, airlines continue to have difficulty with staffing as unemployment remains at historic lows. The 
resulting reduction in announced airline traffic can have an impact on both airline and non-airline 
revenues.  



Page 2 
 

Based on actual results through May 31, 2023, net income before depreciation was approximately 
$41.830 million, a $1.998 million or 5.0% increase from our budget forecast. This is primarily due to 
operating expenses coming in $3.362 million below budget. Non-Operating revenues include $12.608 
million in federal stimulus funds (CARES, ARPA) through May 2023.The majority of federal stimulus 
was to pay for debt service and personnel expenses in the Airfield cost center. $21,000 ARPA funds were 
rolled out in the month of May to offset some concessionaires’ space rents and concession fees.  
 
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES  
 
Total operating revenue for the first 11 months of FY 2022-23 is $60.497 million, $1.893 million or 3.0% 
less than the budget forecast, and $5.330 million or 9.7% greater than operating revenues for the same 
period in FY 2021-22. Airline revenue is $1.374 million or 7.1% below budget primarily due to the lower 
than anticipated landed weight reported by all major airlines and exit of aha! and Frontier Airlines from 
the Reno-Tahoe market.  
 
Non-airline revenue is $518,900 or 1.2% below budget, primarily due to the ARPA fund rollout to 
concessionaires, a softness in the car rental market, and lower than forecasted passenger traffic. ARPA 
funds are recognized as non-operating income per FAA guidelines, therefore, reducing non-airline 
operating revenues. There is no impact on the overall cash received by RTAA. Non-airline revenues 
include parking and ground transportation, auto rental, retail, food and beverage concessions, gaming 
revenues, advertising, terminal rents, and other building rents. The chart below reflects actual operating 
revenues for the fiscal year as compared to the budget amount.  
 

 
 
AIRLINE REVENUES  
 
Airline revenues are collected in accordance with rates and charges as specified by the formula in 
RTAA’s Airline-Airport Use and Lease Agreement (AAULA) with the signatory airlines effective July 1, 
2015, through June 30, 2023.  RNO has seen a reduction in the current year airline activity due to 



Page 3 
 

schedule changes impacted by labor shortages and increased operating costs. Aha! Airlines filed for 
bankruptcy in August 2022 and ceased operations at RNO. In addition, Frontier Airlines terminated 
operations on February 14, 2023, contributing to the landed weight deficit. These impacts are partially 
offset by new scheduled service provided by Spirit and Sun Country airlines.  
 
Landing Fees 
 
The formula for calculating landing fees consists mostly of cost recovery of Airfield related operating and 
capital improvement costs offset by Airfield derived revenues. Landing fees were budgeted and collected 
at $3.50 per 1,000 lbs. of landed weight. Based on the actual results in the first 11 months of FY 2022-23, 
the calculated landing fee per 1,000 lbs. was $3.75. The calculation includes $950,000 of federal stimulus 
funds applied as a credit to reduce landing fees.  
 
FY 2022-23 total landing fee revenues are $9.801 million, $1.258 million or 11.4% below the budgeted 
amount. The decrease is due to lower landed weight reported by Aha!, Alaska, Allegiant, American, 
Delta, Frontier, JetBlue, Southwest, Spirit, United, FedEx, and UPS, partially offset by higher landed 
weight reported by Volaris, Sun Country, and other non-signatory airlines. Landed weight through May is 
0.4% greater than the same period in FY 2021-22. While below budget, FY 2022-23 monthly landed 
weights have been consistently above FY 2021-22 since November 2022.  
 
Airline Terminal Rents 
 
Airline terminal rents reflect cost recovery of Terminal costs allocated to airline occupied facilities with 
total facility costs divided by rentable terminal square footage. The budgeted average signatory rental rate 
is $54.40 per sq. ft. per annum. Based on actual results for the eleven-month period ending May 31, 2023, 
airline terminal rental revenues were $8.048 million, approximately $116,800 or 1.4% below budget.  
 
NON-AIRLINE REVENUES  
 
Non-airline operating revenues are critical for RTAA to meet operating costs outside of airline affiliated 
operations. While airline revenues are collected as cost recovery for airline affiliated operations, non-
airline operating revenues facilitate internal operations, equipment acquisitions, and capital improvement 
projects that are not directly associated with airline operations. Non-airline operating revenues are 
primarily comprised of terminal and rental car concession revenues, public parking, building/land rents, 
and reimbursement of RTAA provided services. Based on actual results for the eleven-month period 
ending May 31, 2023, non-airline operating revenues totaled $42.648 million, $4.413 million or 11.5% 
greater than the same period in FY 2022-23, and $518,900 or 1.2% less than the budgeted amount. 
 
As previously mentioned, the application of ARPA funds to offset concessionaire rents and revenues are 
not considered operating revenues, but non-operating revenues. As such, the $1.584 million of ARPA 
funds rolled out fiscal year-to-date have been backed out of this total, resulting in the below budget tally. 
Disregarding the ARPA credit, non-airline operating revenues are $44.232 million, $1.065 million or 
2.5% over budget. 
 
All minimum annual guarantees have been reinstated for FY 2022-23, although have not been applicable 
to date with the increase in passenger traffic. Additionally, we have seen substantial growth in parking 
and ground transportation, as well as non-airline rents at both RNO and RTS. Parking and ground 
transportation revenues are up $3.930 million or 30.6% when compared to the same period in FY 2021-
22, RNO building and land rents are up $437,000, or 6.6% year over year, and Reno-Stead rents are up 
$136,900, or 15.3% year over year.  
 



Page 4 
 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
Non-operating revenues of $31.525 million through May 31, 2023, are $4.979 million or 18.8% greater 
than the same period in FY 2021-22, and $529,600 or 1.7% greater than the budget forecast. This revenue 
category is primarily comprised of Customer Facility Charges (CFCs) associated with the rental car 
activity, Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs), federal stimulus funds (CARES, ARPA), interest income, 
and aviation fuel tax. 
   
CFCs were increased from $5.50 to $6.50 per transaction day effective July 1, 2022. Due to the operating 
procedures of the car rental companies, rental car agreements booked prior to the announced new CFC 
rates are quoted and collected at the previous rates. This timing issue was not reflected in the adopted 
budget forecast. Additionally, while higher than the previous year, the below budget passenger traffic 
directly impacts CFC collections. Furthermore, as inflation has remained sticky, passengers have decided 
to choose more cost-effective means of transportation, as reflected in the increased Parking and Ground 
Transportation revenue. CFC revenues are $1.297 million or 22.6% greater than the same period last year, 
and $2.649 million or 27.4% under budget.  

PFC revenues are collected by airlines on ticket sales at $4.50 per enplaned passenger, with RTAA 
receiving a net of $4.39 after an $0.11 administration fee. PFC revenues of $8.002 million through May 
31,2023, are $194,200 or 2.5% greater than the same period in FY 2021-22, and $138,000 or 1.7% below 
budget. The shortfall in PFC revenue compared to budget is directly attributable to the reduction in 
scheduled airline activity by the airlines.  

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses through the first 11 months of FY 2022-23 are $50.192 million, $3.362 million or 
6.3% below budget, and $7.050 million or 16.3% greater than the previous fiscal year through the same 
period. Operating expenses are grouped into five categories: Personnel Services, Utilities and 
Communications, Purchased Services, Materials and Supplies and Administrative expenses. Of the five, 
only Materials and Supplies are over budget, at $106,600 or 3.7% over forecast due to the higher 
consumption rates of supplies, seasonality of some purchases, and the increase of prices overall due to 
inflation. Personnel Services are $579,300 or 1.7% below budget, Utilities and Communications $69,300 
or 1.9%, Purchased Services $2.121 million or 23.7%, and Administrative Expenses $698,200 or 19.2% 
below budget. Vacant positions are the key driver of below budget personnel services, as Washoe County 
continues to see a historically low unemployment rate of 4.1% in May. The timing of consulting services, 
lower costs associated with contracted services, and lower repair and maintenance cost contributed to the 
significant savings in Purchased Services.  The lower Administrative Expenses are due to less training 
and travel through May.  
 



Page 5 
 

 
 
DEBT SERVICE 
 
On July 14, 2022, the Board approved a $50 million non-revolving credit agreement with Wells Fargo 
Bank to provide short-term financing for RTAA’s capital program. Funds may be drawn in any amount 
not to exceed $50 million. As of May 31, 2023, $15.104 million has been utilized leaving a balance of 
$34.896 million available for future RTAA capital financing requirements. Repayment of drawn amounts, 
plus accrued interest and fees is currently being repaid from federal stimulus funds.  
 
KEY BENCHMARKS 

The following are key benchmarks and ratios used to measure financial activities and monitor the 
financial health and condition of RTAA: 
 

Y E A R    T O    D A T E    (May 31, 2023 )
91.7% Of Fiscal Year

CURRENT PRIOR Y-T-D
Key Statistics / Benchmarks YEAR YEAR VARIANCE % BUDGET VARIANCE %

  Enplaned Passengers 2,025,802 1,888,573 137,229 7.3% 2,163,125 (137,323) -6.3%
  Airline Cost Per Enplaned Passenger 6.83$              5.55$              1.28$             23.1% 7.48$             (0.65) -8.7%
  Non-Airline Revenues per EPAX (a) 19.62$           18.86$           0.76$             4.0% 18.69$           0.92 4.9%
  Operating Ratio 83.0% 78.2% 4.8% 6.1% 85.8% -2.9% -3.3%
  Days Cash On Hand 492 552 (59.2) -10.7% 451                41.8 9.3%
  Federal Stimulus Funds 12,608,214$ 12,957,955$ (349,741)$     -2.7% 12,512,775$ 95,439 0.8%

(a)  Excludes cost reimbursement for the Baggage Handing System (BHS) paid by the airlines.  
 
 



Page 6 
 

Enplaned Passengers 
 
Enplaned passengers through the eleven-period ending May 31, 2023, were 2.026 million, 137,200 or 
7.3% greater than enplaned passengers through the same period in FY2021-22, and 137,300 or 6.3% 
below the budget forecast to date. Enplaned passengers are critical to non-airline revenues, such as public 
parking, rental car concessions, food and beverage concessions, gaming, etc. Passenger traffic in FY 
2022-23 has been higher than the same period of the prior year every month since November 2022, 
exceeding pre-pandemic levels. However, while enplaned passengers are at record levels, they continue to 
come in below budget as airlines have reduced schedules coupled with the impacts of terminated 
operations at RNO by aha! and Frontier airlines.  
 
Airline Cost per Enplaned Passenger (CPE) 
 
This ratio represents airline payments for use of airport facilities (landing fees and terminal rents) in 
accordance with the adopted rates and charges methodology as outlined in the airline lease agreement. 
RTAA targets to maintain a reasonable cost structure for airlines operating at RNO to attract and maintain 
air service to our community. Due to lower landing weight as airlines have reduced operations, and no 
federal stimulus funding being applied to offset this reduction in May, the calculated CPE through May is 
$6.83 as compared to the FY 2022-23 budget of $7.51. Pending June airline operations, this number may 
decrease with the application of the remainder of budgeted stimulus funds.  
 
Non-Airline Revenue per Enplaned Passenger 
 
This ratio represents operating revenues derived from sources other than the airlines, divided by enplaned 
passengers for the fiscal year. This financial ratio measures operating revenue capacity from terminal 
rents, rental car concession fees, public parking, and land and building rents from non-airline facilities at 
both airports. Through May, Non-Airline Revenues per enplaned passenger was $19.62 or $0.92 greater 
than budget and $0.76 greater than the same period of the prior year. Parking and ground transportation 
revenue have exceeded budget contributing to the $0.92 increase over budget despite the lower than 
forecasted passenger traffic due to reduced airline operations. Another contributing factor was $1.584 
million of ARPA concession relief credits that offset concessionaire rents and revenues.  
 
Operating Ratio 
 
The Operating Ratio is calculated by dividing operating and maintenance expenses by total operating 
revenues. This ratio indicates whether the level of operating expenses as a proportion of operating 
revenues are consistent and tracking with the approved expenditures and revenues adopted in the budget. 
Generally, a lower ratio of expenses to revenues is positive since it reflects an improvement in the net 
operating revenues available to pay debt service and generate additional cash flow. Through May, the 
operating ratio equals 83.0%, or 4.8% higher than the same period of the prior year and 3.3% less than the 
current year budget forecast. This means RTAA is operating 3.3% more efficiently than forecast. The 
reason for this efficiency is largely due to reduced operating costs and higher than forecast parking and 
ground transportation revenues offsetting lower than expected passenger activity. 
 
Days Cash on Hand (DCOH) 
 
DCOH is an important measure of liquidity. It is calculated by dividing unrestricted cash and investments 
by the daily operating and maintenance expenditure budget (annual operating and maintenance budget 
divided by 365 days). As of May 31, 2023, RTAA’s DCOH was approximately 492 days, 40 days higher 
than the previous period. RTAA’s policy is a desired target of 365 days. The 2021 median average, as 
compiled by Moody’s Investor Services, is 794 for medium hub airports.  



OPERATING STATEMENT
RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2023
    

C U R R E N T   M O N T H For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2023
91.67% OF FISCAL YEAR

CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT PRIOR Y-T-D
 YEAR YEAR VARIANCE % YEAR YEAR VARIANCE % BUDGET VARIANCE %
REVENUES
  Landing Fees 888,029$             694,507$       193,521$       27.9% 9,800,764$       8,653,809$      1,146,954$      13.3% 11,058,384$   (1,257,621)$       -11.4%

  Terminal Rent, Airline 708,162 690,723 17,438           2.5% 8,048,203 8,278,001 (229,798) -2.8% 8,165,025 (116,822) -1.4%
  Aircraft Fees 86,432 85,921 511                0.6% 1,049,458 1,133,755 (84,298) -7.4% 1,079,350 (29,893) -2.8%
  Concession Revenue 543,084 377,199 165,885         44.0% 4,308,615 4,695,735 (387,119) -8.2% 5,444,176 (1,135,560) -20.9%
  Auto Rental 683,838 753,930 (70,092)          -9.3% 9,425,266 9,245,233 180,033 1.9% 10,242,488 (817,222) -8.0%
  Parking & Ground Transportation 1,659,816 1,345,562 314,254         23.4% 16,758,205 12,828,584 3,929,621 30.6% 15,675,011 1,083,195 6.9%
  Reno-Tahoe Building/ Land Rents 642,035 609,645 32,390           5.3% 7,098,224 6,661,255 436,969 6.6% 6,941,483 156,741 2.3%
  Reno-Stead Rents 70,036 79,587 (9,551)            -12.0% 1,031,605 894,673 136,931 15.3% 952,783 78,821 8.3%
  Reimbursed Services 244,200 211,838 32,362           15.3% 2,910,441 2,624,387 286,054 10.9% 2,731,877 178,564 6.5%
  Miscellaneous 19,280 20,917 (1,637) -8% 66,100 151,212 (85,113) -56.3% 99,642 (33,542) -33.7%

      
OPERATING REVENUE 5,544,912$          4,869,830$    675,082$       13.9% 60,496,880$     55,166,645$    5,330,235$      9.7% 62,390,219$   (1,893,339)$       -3.0%
          
EXPENSES     
  Personnel Services 3,138,242$          2,819,358$    318,884$       11.3% 33,885,752$     29,322,984$    4,562,768$      15.6% 34,465,021$   (579,269)$          -1.7%
  Utilities and Communications 291,258 260,110 31,148 12.0% 3,602,273 2,855,407 746,866 26.2% 3,671,570 (69,297) -1.9%
  Purchased Services 725,505 804,030 (78,525) -9.8% 6,816,518 6,248,405 568,113 9.1% 8,937,942 (2,121,424) -23.7%
  Materials and Supplies 339,268 242,472 96,796 39.9% 2,952,414 2,218,125 734,289 33.1% 2,845,822 106,592 3.7%
  Administrative Expense 320,923 241,102 79,821 33.1% 2,935,169 2,497,282 437,888 17.5% 3,633,397 (698,228) -19.2%
         
OPERATING EXPENSES 4,815,196$          4,367,071$    448,125$       10.3% 50,192,127$     43,142,203$    7,049,924$      16.3% 53,553,753$   (3,361,626)$       -6.3%

NET OPERATING INC. BEFORE DEPR. 729,716$             502,759$       226,956$       45.1% 10,304,753$     12,024,443$    (1,719,690)$     -14.3% 8,836,467$     1,468,287$        16.6%
       

  Depreciation and Amortization 2,001,845 2,095,950 (94,106) -4.5% 24,447,030 22,979,967 1,467,063 6.4% 27,498,900 (3,051,871) -11.1%
         

OPERATING INCOME (1,272,129)$        (1,593,191)$  321,062$       20.2% (14,142,276)$    (10,955,524)$   (3,186,752)$     -29.1% (18,662,433)$  4,520,157$        24.2%
        

NON-OPERTING INCOME (EXPENSE)    
  Interest Income and G/L on Investments 192,910$             66,132$         126,778$       191.7% 3,839,505$       176,258$         3,663,247$      2078.3% 805,383$        3,034,121 376.7%
  Passenger Facility Charge 1,091,214 1,116,312 (25,099) -2.2% 8,001,591 7,807,378        194,213           2.5% 8,139,542 (137,951) -1.7%
  Customer Facility Charge 663,646 529,212 134,434         25.4% 7,027,070 5,730,050        1,297,020        22.6% 9,675,659 (2,648,589) -27.4%
  Jet Fuel Tax Revenue 23,000 25,051 (2,051)            -8.2% 278,369 259,386           18,983              7.3% 235,308 43,060 18.3%
  Federal Stimulus 21,398 0 21,398           n.a. 12,608,214 12,957,955      (349,741)          -2.7% 12,512,775     95,439 0.8%
  G/L on Sale of  Capital Assets 0 0 0 n.a. 10,871 15,080 (4,209) -27.9% 0 10,871 n.a.
  Other Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 0 0 0 n.a. (98,425) 0 (98,425) n.a. 0 (98,425) n.a.
  Interest Expense (33,670) 0 (33,670) n.a. (141,847) (399,857)          258,010 -64.5% (372,885) 231,038 -62.0%
       
Total 1,958,498$          1,736,707$    221,791$       12.8% 31,525,346$     26,546,249$    4,979,097$      18.8% 30,995,782$   529,564$           1.7%

        
Net Income Before Capital Contributions 686,369$             143,516$       542,853$       378.3% 17,383,070$     15,590,725$    1,792,345$      11.5% 12,333,349$   5,049,721$        40.9%

8



    
ANNUAL BUDGET

ANNUAL 
BUDGET %

 $ % $ % TO DATE
REVENUES
  Landing Fees 888,029$       1,084,215$   (196,186)$     -18.1% 9,800,764$       11,058,384$   (1,257,621)$ -11.4% 12,102,307$   81%
  Terminal Rent, Airline 708,162 742,275 (34,113)         -4.6% 8,048,203$       8,165,025 (116,822) -1.4% 8,907,300 90%
  Aircraft Fees 86,432 96,101 (9,669)            -10.1% 1,049,458$       1,079,350 (29,893) -2.8% 1,181,011 89%
  Concession Revenue 543,084 523,327 19,757           3.8% 4,308,615$       5,444,176 (1,135,560) -20.9% 5,953,000 72%
  Auto Rental 683,838 1,003,029 (319,191)       -31.8% 9,425,266$       10,242,488 (817,222) -8.0% 11,208,806 84%
  Parking & Ground Transportation 1,659,816 1,528,171 131,645         8.6% 16,758,205$     15,675,011 1,083,195 6.9% 17,150,500 98%
  Reno-Tahoe Building/ Land Rents 642,035 631,044 10,991           1.7% 7,098,224$       6,941,483 156,741 2.3% 7,572,527 94%
  Reno-Stead Rents 70,036 86,617 (16,581)         -19.1% 1,031,605$       952,783 78,821 8.3% 1,039,400 99%
  Reimbursed Services 244,200 254,958 (10,758)         -4.2% 2,910,441$       2,731,877 178,564 6.5% 2,972,759 98%
  Miscellaneous 19,280 9,058 10,222 112.8% 66,100$            99,642 (33,542) -33.7% 108,700 0%

        
OPERATING REVENUE 5,544,912$    5,958,794$   (413,882)$     -6.9% 60,496,880$     62,390,219$   (1,893,339)$ -3.0% 68,196,310$   89%
            
EXPENSES      
  Personnel Services 3,138,242$    3,101,366$   36,876$         1.2% 33,885,752$     34,465,021$   (579,269)$    -1.7% 37,567,907$   90%
  Utilities and Communications 291,258 354,956 (63,698) -17.9% 3,602,273$       3,671,570 (69,297) -1.9% 4,051,370 89%
  Purchased Services 725,505 825,023 (99,518) -12.1% 6,816,518$       8,937,942 (2,121,424) -23.7% 9,785,852 70%
  Materials and Supplies 339,268 269,385 69,883 25.9% 2,952,414$       2,845,822 106,592 3.7% 3,115,322 95%
  Administrative Expense 320,923 303,465 17,459 5.8% 2,935,169$       3,633,397 (698,228) -19.2% 3,985,021 74%
           
OPERATING EXPENSES 4,815,196$    4,854,194$   (38,998)$       -0.8% 50,192,127$     53,553,753$   (3,361,626)$ -6.3% 58,505,471$   86%

NET OPERATING INC. BEFORE DEPR. 729,716$       1,104,600$   (374,884)$     -33.9% 10,304,753$     8,836,467$     1,468,287$   16.6% 9,690,839$     106%
       

  Depreciation and Amortization 2,001,845 2,500,000 (498,155) -19.9% 24,447,030 27,500,000 (3,052,971) -11.1% 30,000,000 81%
           

OPERATING INCOME (1,272,129)$  (1,395,400)$ 123,271$       8.8% (14,142,276)$    (18,663,533)$ 4,521,257$   24.2% (20,309,161)$ 70%
          

NON-OPERTING INCOME (EXPENSE)    
  Interest Income and G/L on Investments 192,910$       73,217$        119,693$       163.5% 3,839,505$       805,383$        3,034,121$   376.7% 878,600 437%
  Passenger Facility Charge 1,091,214 739,958 351,255 47.5% 8,001,591$       8,139,542 (137,951)       -1.7% 8,879,500 90%
  Customer Facility Charge 663,646 947,520 (283,874)       -30.0% 7,027,070$       9,675,659 (2,648,589)   -27.4% 10,588,500 66%
  Jet Fuel Tax Revenue 23,000 21,392 1,608             7.5% 278,369$          235,308 43,060          18.3% 256,700 108%
  Federal Stimulus 21,398 1,137,525 (1,116,127)    -98.1% 12,608,214$     12,512,775 95,439          0.8% 13,650,300 92%
  G/L on Investments and Sale of  Assets 0 0 0 n.a. 10,871$            0 10,871 n.a. 0 n.a.
  Other Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 0 0 0 n.a. (98,425) 0 (98,425) n.a. 0 n.a.
  Interest Expense (33,670) (33,900) 230 -0.7% (141,847)$         (372,885) 231,038 -62.0% (406,800) 35%
           
Total 1,958,498$    2,885,712$   (927,214)$     -32.1% 31,525,346$     30,995,782$   529,564$      1.7% 33,846,800$   93%

          
Net Income Before Capital Contributions 686,369$       1,490,312$   (803,943)$     -53.9% 17,383,070$     12,332,249$   5,050,821$   41.0% 13,537,639$   128%

BUDGET
VARIANCE

OPERATING STATEMENT
RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2023

C U R R E N T   M O N T H YEAR TO DATE

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET

VARIANCE
ACTUAL

9



10

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

FY 2023 Revenue FY 2022 Revenue FY 2023 Expense FY 2022 Expense

Fiscal Year

Operating Revenue and Expense
YTD through May 31, 2023

Landing fees Concession revenue

Parking and ground transportation Rentals

Reimbursements for services Other revenue

Employee wages and benefits Utilities and communications

Purchase of services Materials and supplies

Administrative expenses



SUMMARY OF NON-AIRLINE REVENUES

Over 5/31/2023 Over % of
5/31/2023 5/31/2022 (Under) % Year to Date (Under) % 2022-23 Annual

YTD Actual YTD Actual Prior Year Variance Budget Budget Variance Annual Budget Budget

Aircraft Fees - Reno 1,030,029$          1,062,159$          (32,130)$         -3.0% 1,029,152           877$               0.1% 1,122,711         91.7%
Aircraft Fees - Stead 19,428                 71,597                 (52,168)           -72.9% 50,198                (30,770)           -61.3% 58,300              33.3%

Gaming Concession 937,639               1,160,569            (222,930)         -19.2% 1,096,090           (158,452)         -14.5% 1,199,500         78.2%
Food & Beverage 1,243,936            1,339,771            (95,836)           -7.2% 1,927,090           (683,155)         -35.5% 2,108,900         59.0%
Retail/Merchandise 594,361               769,841               (175,480)         -22.8% 1,023,170           (428,809)         -41.9% 1,119,700         53.1%
Advertising 698,046               671,303               26,742            4.0% 776,783              (78,738)           -10.1% 847,400            82.4%
Other Concessions 96,876                 183,731               (86,855)           -47.3% 132,183              (35,307)           -26.7% 144,200            67.2%

FBO  and Ground Handlers 700,385               549,073               151,312          27.6% 470,250              230,135          48.9% 513,000            136.5%
Stead Concessions 37,373                 21,447                 15,926            74.3% 18,608                18,765            100.8% 20,300              184.1%

Auto Rental 9,425,266            9,245,233            180,033          1.9% 10,242,488         (817,222)         -8.0% 11,208,806        84.1%

Ground Transportation 614,249               284,344               329,905          116.0% 633,050              (18,802)           -3.0% 690,600            88.9%
Auto Parking 16,143,957          12,544,241          3,599,716       28.7% 15,041,960         1,101,996       7.3% 16,459,900        98.1%

Other Terminal Rents 768,875               759,803               9,073              1.2% 725,450              43,425            6.0% 791,400            97.2%
Reno-Tahoe Building Rents 3,077,608            2,864,087            213,522          7.5% 2,926,742           150,866          5.2% 3,192,810         96.4%
Reno-Tahoe Land Rents 3,251,740            3,037,365            214,375          7.1% 3,289,291           (37,551)           -1.1% 3,588,318         90.6%
Reno-Stead Rents 1,031,605            894,673               136,931          15.3% 952,783              78,821            8.3% 1,039,400         99.3%

Reimbursed Services 2,910,441            2,624,387            286,054          10.9% 2,731,877           178,564          6.5% 2,972,759         97.9%

Miscellaneous 66,100                 151,212               (85,113)           -56.3% 99,642                (33,542)           -33.7% 108,700            60.8%

Total Non-Airline Operating Revenue 42,647,913          38,234,835          4,413,078       11.5% 43,166,810         (518,896)         -1.2% 47,186,704        90.4%
-                   

Non Operating Revenue (a) 1,783,296            727,452               1,055,844       145.1% 1,040,692           742,604          71.4% 1,135,300         157.1%

TOTAL NON-AIRLINE REVENUE 44,431,209$        38,962,287$        5,468,922$      14.0% 44,207,501$       223,708$        0.5% 48,322,004$      91.9%
(518,896)         

Year to Date Enplaned Passengers 2,025,802 1,888,573 2,163,125 2,367,203

Non-Airline Revenue Per EPAX (b) 19.62$                 18.86$                 18.69$                18.68$              

Non-Airline Revenue Per EPAX (c) 10.79$                 11.38$                 10.90$                10.89$              

(a) Excludes PFC and CFC revenues
(b) Total Non-Airline Revenue less Reimbursed Services divided by enplaned passengers
(c) Non-Airline Revenue (Concessions, Rental Car, Other Rents) Per Enplaned Passenger (Strategic Plan Measure)

Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority

11



NET REVENUE SHARING - YEAR TO DATE
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority

For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2023

Baggage Reno
Airfield Terminal System Landside Other Stead Total

Revenue Sharing
Airline Revenue 10,629,721        12,628,485             -                          -                      -                      -                       23,258,205         
Non Airline Revenue 1,056,110          5,530,441               1,719,732               26,183,471         8,758,289           1,088,406            44,336,450         
Total Revenue 11,685,830        18,158,926             1,719,732               26,183,471         8,758,289           1,088,406            67,594,655         

Budgeted Revenue 12,306,266        19,594,758             1,701,295               26,163,139         7,416,408           1,024,833            68,206,699         

O&M Expense 11,725,880$      20,927,078$           1,750,962$             8,959,495$         4,204,990$         2,128,563$          49,696,968$       
Debt Service -                     -                          -                          -                      7,768,758           -                       7,768,758           
Pre Bond Loan -                     -                          -                          -                      -                      -                       -                      
O&M Reserve 250,920             436,470                  33,610                    207,975              94,355                46,932                 1,070,262           
Fixed Asset 501,519             369,938                  -                          221,380              135,801              48,661                 1,277,299           
Capital Project 131,431             541,015                  -                          24,623                348,535              64,102                 1,109,706           
Amort.  Capital Items 1,105,915          354,394                  -                          974,522              619,306              388,434               3,442,571           
Special Fund -                     384,840                  -                          -                      -                      -                       384,840              
Federal Stimulus (950,000)            -                      (7,711,412)          -                       (8,661,412)          
Total Requirement 12,765,665        23,013,735             1,784,572               10,387,995         5,460,332           2,676,692            56,088,991         

Budgeted Requirement 13,413,276        24,116,349             1,701,295               11,093,634         5,389,273           2,876,790            58,590,617         

Net Revenues (1,079,835)         (4,854,809)              (64,840)                   15,795,476         3,297,957           (1,588,286)           11,505,664         

Budgeted Net Revenues (1,107,010)         (4,521,591)              -                          15,069,505         2,027,135           (1,851,957)           9,616,082           

Months 11 Airport  Share 5,752,832$         
Airline Share 5,752,832$         

12



SUMMARY OF ENPLANED PASSENGERS BY AIRLINE
Reno-Tahoe International Airport

Month Year-to-date
Percent YTD YTD Percent

Enplaned passengers by Airline May-23 May-22 change 2022-23 2021-22 change

Major/national carriers (Signatory)
Aha! 0 2,019 -100.0% 5,407 14,507 -62.7%
Alaska 14,548 16,943 -14.1% 140,441 180,016 -22.0%
American 29,965 26,404 13.5% 317,709 335,224 -5.2%
Delta 18,199 17,391 4.6% 183,366 199,435 -8.1%
Southwest 81,190 73,220 10.9% 878,395 752,914 16.7%
United 23,141 26,844 -13.8% 300,946 260,540 15.5%

Total 167,043 162,821 2.6% 1,826,264 1,742,636 4.8%

Non-Signatory and Charter
Allegiant Air 1,079 2,551 -57.7% 13,877 30,610 -54.7%
Frontier 0 1,810 -100.0% 14,980 31,102 -51.8%
JetBlue 2,637 4,409 -40.2% 46,152 50,418 -8.5%
Spirit Airlines 8,332 0 n.a. 78,239 0 n.a.
Sun Country Airlines 1,499 986 52.0% 17,063 2,353 625.2%
Volaris 2,522 1,910 32.0% 29,227 24,140 21.1%
Other Charters   0 0 n.a. 0 7,314 -100.0%

Total
16,069 11,666 37.7% 199,538 145,937 36.7%

Total enplaned passengers 183,112 174,487 4.9% 2,025,802 1,888,573 7.3%

Aha
0.3%

Alaska
6.9%

American
15.7%

Delta
9.1%

Southwest
43.4%

United
14.9% Allegiant Air

0.7%
Frontier

0.7%

JetBlue (Non-
Signatory)

2.3%

Spirit Airline, Inc. 
3.9%

Sun Country
0.8%

Volaris
1.4%

Enplaned Passenger Market Share
Year to Date May 2023

  13



13

446 

530 522 

451 

492 

 -

 100.00

 200.00

 300.00

 400.00

 500.00

 600.00

$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

RTAA Liquidity Position

Unrestricted Cash Restricted Cash Days Cash on Hand


	07-2023 Finance Agenda
	06-2023 Finance MINUTES
	#51 Scheidt Bachmann Extension_Bd Memo
	07-2023 Contracts - Revenues
	07-2023 Contracts - Expenditures
	07-2023 Financial Reporting Pkg
	07-2023 Financial Reporting Pkg_Attachments
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14




